
 
 
 

MIAMI-DADE COUNTY 
FINAL OFFICIAL MINUTES 

Board of County Commissioners Zoning Board 
 
 

Board of County Commissioners 
Stephen P. Clark Government Center 

111 NW 1st Street 
Miami, Florida  33128 

 

 

May 23, 2013 
As Advertised  

 
Harvey Ruvin, Clerk 

Board of County Commissioners 
 

Christopher Agrippa, Division Chief 
Clerk of the Board Division 

 
 

Mary Smith-York, Commission Reporter 
  (305) 375-1598 

 



CLERK’S SUMMARY & OFFICIAL MINUTES 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS ZONING HEARING 

May 23, 2013 
 
 
The Board of County Commissioners (BCC) convened a Zoning meeting on Thursday, May 23, 
2013, in the County Commission Chambers, on the second floor of the Stephen P. Clark 
Government Center, 111 N.W. First Street, Miami, Florida, at 9:00 a.m., there being present 
Chairwoman Sosa, Vice-Chair Bell, and Commissioners Barreiro, Bovo, Jordan, Moss, and 
Suarez; (Commissioners Edmonson, Diaz, Heyman, Monestime, Souto, and Zapata were absent.) 
 
In addition to the Commission members, the following staff members were also present:  Deputy 
Mayor Edward Marquez; Assistant County Attorney Craig Coller; Department of Regulatory and 
Economic Resources Director Eric Silva; and Deputy Clerks Christopher Agrippa and Mary 
Smith-York. 
 
Chairwoman Sosa called the meeting to order at 10:05 a.m. 
 
Sergeant at Arms Michael Roan delivered the invocation, after which Sergeant at Arms Paul 
Hernandez led the reciting of the Pledge of Allegiance 
  
THE CLERK SWORE IN ALL WITNESSES AND OFFICIAL TRANSLATORS PRIOR TO 
PRESENTING TESTIMONY OR INTERPRETATION OF QUESTIONS ASKED AND 
TESTIMONY GIVEN. 
 
In response to Chairwoman Sosa’s request for deferrals and/or withdrawals, Mr. Eric Silva, 
Department of Regulatory and Economic Resources Director, advised that staff was requesting 
the deferral of Item #1: Miami Gardens Park, LLC (13-1-CZ5-1/12-089) due to the notice being 
improperly advertised.  He noted no additional fees would be required from the Applicant for 
any notices or advertisements. 
 
ITEM:  1.   MIAMI GARDENS PARK, LLC  (13-1-CZ5-1/12-089)                                 
APPLICANT:  Miami Gardens Park, LLC 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Jordan that staff’s request to defer Item No. 1, Miami 
Gardens Park, LLC (13-1-CZ5-1/12-089), to June 20, 2013 be approved.  This motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Bovo, and upon being put to a vote, passed by a vote of 7-0 
(Commissioners Diaz, Edmonson, Heyman, Monestime, Souto, and Zapata were absent). 
 
Mr. Hans Ottinot, Esq., attorney representing the Moors Patio Homes Maintenance Association, 
Inc., appeared before the Board and noted he had no objection to the deferral of the foregoing 
application; however, as his client had paid significant fees, he requested that appropriate notice 
be provided to the organization. 
 
Hearing no further questions or comments, the Board proceeded to consider today’s agenda. 

May 23, 2013 Board of County Commissioners Zoning Hearing Page 1 of 5 



Mr. Eric Silva, Department of Planning & Zoning Director, announced that, in accordance with 
the Code of Miami-Dade County, all items on today’s (5/23) zoning agenda were legally 
advertised in the newspapers, notices were mailed, and the properties posted.  He noted 
additional copies of the agenda were available in the Chambers and provided the process by 
which items would be called.  Mr. Silva stated the record on file for each application would 
include documents from the public; agencies; the Department of Regulatory and Economic 
Resources (RER); and where there was appeal(s) from the Community Zoning Appeals Board 
(CZAB), the transcript from those hearings.  He stated all documents were physically present 
today, available to all interested parties, and available to the members of the Board of County 
Commissioners, who may examine these items from the record during the hearing.  Mr. Silva 
stated parties had the right to cross-examination; this statement, along with the fact that all 
witnesses had been sworn, should be included in any transcript of these proceedings.  In addition, 
he noted, there was an official translator present in the Chambers for individuals requiring such 
assistance. 
 
ITEM 2. SOUTHWESTERN GRANT, LLC ET AL    (13-5-CC-1/11-128)  
 
Mr. Silva read the following application into the record and noted he wanted to ensure the 
language on Page 14, under the heading: Miami-Dade Public Schools was consistent with the 
memorandum from the School Board.   He advised that the numbers reflected on Page 14 only 
described the elementary and middle school students, and requested the language be amended to 
read: “…a surplus of student stations in the elementary and middle levels of 954, and senior high 
school level of 526. 
 
Ms. Leila Batties, Esq., Holland and Knight, LLC, 701 Brickell Avenue, appeared before the 
Board and introduced her colleague, Mr. Hugo Arza, attorney representing Holland and Knight, 
LLC.  Ms. Batties recognized the following individuals present in support of the foregoing 
proposed application:  Mr. Rolando Llanes, Architect, and Mr. Ivan Fajardo, Senior Project 
Manager, Civica Group; Ms. Kerri Ann O’Sullivan, Principal, Somerset Academy, Inc. Charter 
School; and three parents.  She noted that she and colleague Mr. Michael Faraday (phonetic) had 
compiled 170 letters of support into a booklet, as well as an exhibit booklet containing several 
awards and recognitions received by Somerset Academy, along with colored photographs, site 
plans, and all the previous approvals and covenants related to the school.   
 
Ms. Batties provided the background information for the property which consisted of four 
parcels in the Silver Palms community.  She provided detailed descriptions of Parcels A through 
D and noted this application represented the final development approval necessary to create K-12 
campus for Somerset Academy Charter School totaling approximately ten acres.  Ms. Batties 
noted today’s (5/23) application consolidated the sites and proposed a combined campus and 
listed the improvements being implemented and listed the grade breakdown for the combined 
campus.  
 
Mr. Rolando Llanes, Civica Group, 8323 N.W. 12th Street, Doral, appeared before the Board and 
presented drawings to illustrate some points made by Ms. Batties.  He illustrated how the 
proposed changes to the parking lot increased the parking count with a surplus of 44 spaces and 
provided amenities for the campus to grow an additional 400 students, an additional recreational 

May 23, 2013 Board of County Commissioners Zoning Hearing Page 2 of 5 



area, natural lighting in all classrooms, and a new gymnasium. Mr. Llanes noted the camaraderie 
shown between the school’s personnel, staff, and the developers and stated the goal was to 
provide Somerset Academy with the environment necessary for the children’s academic growth. 
 
Mr. Carlos E Ottley, 19814 SW 118 Avenue, father of two Somerset Academy students, 
appeared before the Board in support of the Application No. 2. 
 
Ms. Kerri Ann O’Sullivan, Principal, Somerset Academy, Inc. Charter School, appeared before 
the Board in support of Application No. 2 and provided information regarding the school. 
 
 Chairwoman Sosa opened the public hearing and called for anyone wishing to be heard. 
 
The following individual(s) appeared: 
 
1)  Adriana Pimentel-Filippi, 23626 SW 113 Pass, Homestead, appeared before the Board in 
support of Application 2 and noted she was the parent of a child attending Somerset Academy. 
 
Seeing no other persons wishing to be heard, Chairwoman Sosa closed the Public Hearing. 
 
Commissioner Bell spoke in support of Application No. 2 and vouched for the well run school 
that reflected demographics of community.  She listed the high ranking scores earned by this 
school locally and nationally. 
 
In response to Commissioner Moss’ request for clarification on the proposed revisions to the 
previous commitments, Mr. Silva stated the consolidation of the parcels and acquisition of Parcel 
D, and putting the park in the middle and improving the stacking for the flow of traffic, as well 
as the addition of gymnasium.  He noted the consolidation included the deletion of the old 
covenants and listed all the requirements in the foregoing resolution, making it easier for staff to 
enforce.  Regarding Commissioner Moss’ inquiry as to when building permits would be pulled 
and the required number of student stations, Mr. Silva noted those requirements were rescinded.  
He noted the current number of students proposed was 2,000 and was all addressed to the 
resolution’s conditions with no objection from the Miami-Dade County Public School Board. 
 
Commissioner Moss noted he was in support of Application 2. 
 
Commissioner Suarez asked staff to clarify how the number of student stations related to the 
process for developments to be approved.  
 
Mr. Silva explained the process for residential development in which the School Board 
conducted a concurrency analysis of the area’s schools and provided the capacity for that 
residential development to the County via memorandum.  With respect to charter schools, Mr. 
Silva explained that the School Board must issue a charter before the development could go 
before the Developmental Impact Committee (DIC).  He stated the School Board also provided 
the Zoning Department with information regarding the capacity of the surrounding schools.   
 

May 23, 2013 Board of County Commissioners Zoning Hearing Page 3 of 5 



Discussion ensued among Commission members and staff regarding the original purpose of 
charter schools to mitigate capacity issues in the public schools and that being changed to 
involve competition with public schools for student enrollment.  Chairwoman Sosa explained 
that charter schools were originated when the State Legislature decreased funding to the public 
schools and decided to create private/public partnerships using tax dollars. 
 
In response to Chairwoman Sosa’s inquiry as to whether staff recommended approval for the 
building setbacks being less than required, the temporary parking, and the wall sign, Mr. Silva 
noted staff recommended approval, pointing out that the signs were small in size and the 
temporary parking was only during the school’s construction phase. 
 
Discussion ensued between Chairwoman Sosa and staff regarding the approval for temporary 
parking and terrain parking.  Chairwoman Sosa noted conditions imposed were sometimes 
changed and emphasized the need to include a cap on the length of time the temporary parking 
was allowed.  
 
Mr. Llanes advised that when the building would open in 2014, at which time the temporary lot 
would disappear. 
 
Commissioner Moss recommended the temporary parking lot be allowed for 24 months/2 years. 
 
In response to Chairwoman Sosa’s request that staff’s recommendations include a cap on the 
temporary and terrain parking, Mr. Silva noted that would be an amendment to end in 2016.  
 
Commissioner Jordan noted she understood Mr. Llanes to state that construction of the building 
would be completed in August 2014.  She noted this would then eliminate parking on that 
temporary lot because a building would then be constructed on that lot.   
 
Commissioner Moss explained his recommendation for a 24 month cap was because the 
construction process occasionally deviated from the plans. 
 
In response to Chairwoman Sosa’s inquiry as to how the students would be divided within the 
new building, Principal O’Sullivan described the housing structure developed for the students, 
adding that it included students with special needs. 
 
Commissioner Bell read into the record the following language reflected on the bottom of 
handwritten page 12:  “…Additionally, staff notes that the request #14 for parking on natural 
terrain on Parcel B is temporary and will be used during the construction of the parking lot areas 
on Parcels C and D.  As a condition of approval staff recommends that the parking on natural 
terrain cease upon the completion of the parking lot areas on Parcels C and D…” and noted she 
felt this met Chairwoman Sosa’s concerns.   
 
Upon hearing Commissioner Bell’s statement that Charter Schools were also public schools and 
conformed to the same requirements, including administering the Florida Comprehensive 
Assessment Test (FCAT), Commissioner Jordan noted that answered her question.  
Commissioner Jordan stated private schools did not administer the FCAT.  She noted she was 

May 23, 2013 Board of County Commissioners Zoning Hearing Page 4 of 5 





Board of County Commissioners  
ZONING HEARING EXHIBITS 

May 23, 2013 
  

Prepared by: Mary Smith-York   

EXHIBITS LIST 

 
  

NO. DATE ITEM # DESCRIPTION 

1 5/23/2013  Official Zoning Agenda 

2 5/23/2013  Absence Memo from Commissioner Jean Monestime 

3 5/23/2013  Absence Memo from Commissioner Audrey Edmonson 

4 5/23/2013  Absence Memo from Commissioner Sally Heyman 

5 5/23/2013  Absence Memo from Commissioner Jose “Pepe” Diaz 

6 5/23/2013  Zoning Action Sheet 

7 5/23/2013  Speaker Card(s) 

8    

9    

10    

11    

12    

13    

14    

15    

16    

17    

18    

19    

20    


























	Exhibits List
	Official Zoning Agenda
	Absence Memo from Commr Monestime
	Absence Memo from Commr Edmonson
	Absence Memo from Commr Heyman
	Absence Memo from Commr Diaz
	Zoning Action Sheet
	Speaker Card(s)

